
 
 

   
  

    
 

 
 

  
  

 
   

  
 

  
  

   
 

 
 

  
   

  
   

  
     

  
 

  
    

    
  

  
  

   
     

   
   
   

   
   

Township of 

~ 1 BILLINGS 
The Corporation of the Township of Billings 

Council Meeting Agenda 
March 19, 2024 7:00 p.m. 

Kagawong Park Centre 

Council 
Bryan Barker, Mayor 
David Hillyard, Deputy Mayor 
Ian Anderson, Councillor 
Vince Grogan, Councillor 
Michael Hunt, Councillor 

Staff 
Emily Dance, CAO/Clerk 
Tiana Mills, Deputy Clerk 
Harmony Hancock, Director of Financial Services/Treasurer 
Todd Gordon, Municipal Project Manager 

1. Call to Order 
Mayor Bryan Barker to call the meeting to order. 

2. Approval of Agenda 
2.1. Confirm approval of the agenda. 

3. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest 
4. Delegation – Township of Billings Five-Year Strategic Plan 

Steve Lichty, Capital Park Consulting will be presenting the Township of Billings Five-Year 
Strategic Plan. 

5. Adoption of Minutes 
Motion to adopt the minutes of the following meetings of Council: 
5.1. Regular Council Meeting – March 5th, 2024 

6. Committee Reports 
6.1. Members of Council are provided with an opportunity to report on Committee and 

Board meetings. 
6.1.1. Manitoulin Planning Board Meeting Minutes: February 27th, 2024 
6.1.2. Building Systems Committee Meeting Minutes: March 6th, 2024 

7. Staff Reports 
7.1. CAO-2024-03-02 Township of Billings Five Year Strategic Plan 
7.2. TR-2024-03-06 2024 Township of Billings Budget 

8. Correspondence Requiring Direction 
8.1. 2024 Elemental Festival Request 



 
 

 
   

    
    

     
   

  
  
    

   
  

       
  

   
 

 
    

    
   

  
   

      
 

     

Township of 

~ 1 BILLINGS 
Motion 
THAT the Township of Billings Council hereby receives the letter from 4elements dated 
March 12, 2024 AND authorizes in-kind support for the 2024 Elemental Festival 
organized by 4Elements Living Arts, in the form of free rental of the Park Centre and 
Old Church on the Hill for September 20-21, 2024 (value of $904.00). 

9. By-Laws and Agreements 
9.1. By-Law No. 2024-19 Adopt Tax Ratio 
9.2. By-Law No. 2024-20 Adopt 2024 Township of Billings Budget 
9.3. By-Law No. 2024-21 Adopt 2024 Tax Rate 

10. Notice of Motions 
11. Confirmatory By-Law 

11.1. By-Law No. 2024-22 Being the March 19th, 2024 Confirmatory By-Law 
12. Adjournment 

12.1. Motion to Adjourn 

Document Accessibility 
The Township of Billings is committed to providing information in the format that meets your needs. We 
have made every attempt to make documents for this meeting accessible but there may still be difficulty 
in recognizing all the information. Please contact us if you require assistance and we will make every 
attempt to provide this information in an alternative format. 
Please note that third party documents received and found within this document will not be converted 
to an accessible format by the Township of Billings. However, upon request, we will attempt to obtain 
these documents in an appropriate accessible format from the third party. 
For assistance or to make a request please call (705) 282-2611 or email tmills@billingstwp.ca 

mailto:tmills@billingstwp.ca


Strategic Plan
2024 – 2028 and Beyond

TO W N S H I P  O F  B I L L I N G S



Message from the Mayor, 
Council and Township Staff
We are honoured to introduce our new strategic plan, a roadmap that will guide the 
growth and development of our community over the coming years. We extend our 
heartfelt thanks to all the residents who participated in the survey, joined us for focus 
groups, and attended our public meetings. Your input has been invaluable in shaping 
this plan and ensuring it reflects the values and aspirations of our community.

One of the key priorities of our strategic plan is to maintain the rural character that 
makes Billings so special. We are committed to preserving the unique identity, rich 
history, and strong sense of tradition of our community. Our township is a place 
where neighbors know each other by name, where families have deep roots, and 
where newcomers are warmly welcomed. We will work tirelessly to uphold these 
values and ensure that Billings remains a welcoming and inclusive community for all.

We also recognize the importance of our natural environment and the role it plays in 
enhancing our quality of life. Billings is blessed with stunning natural beauty, from our 
pristine lakes and rivers to our lush forests and rolling hills. These natural attractions 
not only provide endless opportunities for recreation and relaxation for our residents 
but also draw visitors from far and wide. Protecting our natural environment will be 
a top priority as we move forward, ensuring that future generations can continue to 
enjoy the beauty here.

We are excited about the future of the Township of Billings and confident that our 
strategic plan will help us achieve our vision for a vibrant, sustainable, and inclusive 
community. We look forward to working together with all of you to make this vision  
a reality.

Billings Council: Michael Hunt, Ian Anderson, Vince Grogan, Mayor Bryan Barker, Deputy Mayor David Hillyard

Township of Billings Strategic Plan: 2024 – 2028 and Beyond1



Township of Billings  
At a Glance
Located on the northern shore of Manitoulin Island, the Township of 
Billings is a vibrant community with a rich history and a bright future. For 
centuries, this land has been home to Indigenous nations, including the 
Anishinaabe and the Odawa, who have lived here and continue to be an 
integral part of our community.

Billings was officially formed in 1887, named in honor of Sir William 
Billings, a prominent politician and businessman of the time. The township 
was legally established through the passage of the Billings Township Act, 
which formally recognized the area as a distinct municipality with its own 
government and administration.

Present-day Billings is a dynamic and welcoming community, offering 
a wide range of activities and amenities for residents and visitors alike. 
Our township boasts a strong agricultural heritage, with many local farms 
producing a variety of crops and livestock. Outdoor enthusiasts will find 
plenty to enjoy, from hiking and biking trails to fishing and boating on Lake 
Huron.

One of the key attractions is our proximity to the Benjamin Islands, a 
renowned group of islands known for their rugged beauty and pristine 
waters. Boaters departing from the Kagawong marina have easy access 
to these islands, making it the closest harbour for those looking to explore 
this stunning natural wonder.

Bridal Veil Falls is the most popular tourist attraction in our region. Visitors 
can take a leisurely stroll along the well-maintained trail that leads to the 
base of the falls, where they can feel the mist on their faces and marvel 
at the natural beauty that surrounds them. Bridal Veil Falls is not only a 
popular spot for nature enthusiasts and photographers but also serves as 
a reminder of the awe-inspiring power and beauty of the natural world.

In addition to our natural attractions, the Township is also home to a 
vibrant arts and culture scene, with local artists, musicians, and artisans 
showcasing their talents throughout the year. Our community is proud of 
its heritage and celebrates it through our museum, events and festivals 
that highlight our history, traditions, and Indigenous cultures.

As we look to the future, we are committed to building on the strong 
foundation laid by those who came before us. We will continue to work 
together to ensure that Billings Township remains a place where everyone 
feels welcome, and where the natural beauty of our surroundings is 
preserved for generations to come.

Township of Billings Strategic Plan: 2024 – 2028 and Beyond2



S T R AT E G I C  P R I O R I T I E S

Service Excellence

Community Wellbeing

Resilient Natural Environment

Infrastructure

O U R  V I S I O N

Inspiring a life well-lived. Naturally.

O U R  M I S S I O N

Ensuring a progressive future,  
while honouring our rich history.

O U R  VA L U E S

Progressive

Welcoming

Accountable

Heritage-minded

Sustainable



Service Excellence
Service excellence demonstrates a commitment to meeting the diverse needs 
of our residents, builds trust, fosters civic pride, and bolsters our reputation for 
efficient and responsive governance.

Objective Actions

Embrace modern 
technology to enhance 
citizen experience

 ▶ Improve digital connectivity and technical services 
to strengthen citizen interaction and to increase 
capacity to deliver services in an accessible format.

 ▶ Enhance the township web site, social media 
accounts and apps.

Establish an adaptive 
organizational culture of 
continuous improvement

 ▶ Establish Billings Township as an employer of choice 
to attract and retain top talent.

 ▶ Empower employees to be more proactive, innovative 
and collaborative.

 ▶ Increase cross-departmental collaboration.

 ▶ Research opportunities to be a more data-driven 
organization.

Enhance communications 
to promote engagement 
and accessibility

 ▶ Provide strategically focused public engagement 
opportunities.

 ▶ Expand staff training in customer service standards 
for inclusivity and diversity.

Prioritize collaboration to 
improve customer service 
and increase efficiency

 ▶ Foster partnerships and shared services.

 ▶ Enhance collaboration with community groups, 
volunteers and others.

Ensure good governance  ▶ Foster transparency, accountability, and engagement 
through clear policies and effective communication.

S T R AT E G I C  P R I O R I T Y  1

Township of Billings Strategic Plan: 2024 – 2028 and Beyond4



Community Wellbeing
Community well-being refers to the overall health, happiness, and quality of life 
experienced by the individuals and groups within our community. We commit 
to enhancing our residents’ lives and fostering social cohesion, resilience, 
economic development and sustainability.

Objective Actions

Provide community spaces 
that enrich the lives and 
encourage active lifestyles 
for all ages

 ▶ Revitalize existing spaces where citizens of all ages 
naturally gather.

 ▶ Optimize experiences for users of our natural spaces.

 ▶ Incorporate our values including diversity, equity, 
inclusion and climate action into our policies, plans 
and initiatives.

 ▶ Determine strategic direction for underutilized 
municipal lands.

Ensure safety and security  ▶ Analyze road signage and upgrade to enhance road 
safety.

 ▶ Improve neighbourhood connections and identify 
unique neighbourhood needs.

 ▶ Prioritize implementation of climate action initiatives 
and education on emergency preparedness.

Improve overall health and 
foster social cohesion

 ▶ Encourage and empower community groups to 
organize and manage events and activities.

Foster economic growth 
and development

 ▶ Continue to explore funding opportunities to enhance 
economic development.

Facilitate support  
for seniors

 ▶ Research options for providing supports for seniors, 
such as independent living facilities.

S T R AT E G I C  P R I O R I T Y  2

Township of Billings Strategic Plan: 2024 – 2028 and Beyond5



Resilient Natural  
Environment
Implementing strategies to preserve and enhance our natural environment  
is essential for Billings Township to foster resilience and sustainability for  
future generations.

Objective Actions

Protect and enhance our 
natural assets

 ▶ Be good stewards of our streams, lakes, waterfalls 
and other natural assets.

 ▶ Continue to work with community partners to protect 
and expand our trail systems and open spaces.

 ▶ Prepare for, mitigate and adapt to changes in the 
natural environment.

S T R AT E G I C  P R I O R I T Y  3

Township of Billings Strategic Plan: 2024 – 2028 and Beyond6



Infrastructure
Infrastructure is the backbone of our community, providing the essential 
facilities and systems that enable our residents to lead safe, productive, and 
comfortable lives.

Objective Actions

Ensure that current and 
future township assets  
are managed to be 
sustainable to meet our 
long-term needs

 ▶ Refine the Asset Management Plan to facilitate the 
preparation of capital and operating budgets.

 ▶ Determine strategic direction for existing facilities and 
other infrastructure.

 ▶ Prioritize infrastructure projects based on critical 
needs, aging systems, potential environmental risks, 
and community needs.

 ▶ Proactively prepare and plan projects and continue to 
identify and apply for additional funding opportunities.

S T R AT E G I C  P R I O R I T Y  4

Township of Billings Strategic Plan: 2024 – 2028 and Beyond7



Township of Billings
15 Old Mill Road, P.O. Box 1092 
Kagawong, ON P0P 1J0

Tel 705.282.2611 
Fax 705.282.3199

billingstwp.ca

Implementation  
of the Strategic Plan
The strategic plan will provide a framework for decision-making, with plan objectives 
and broad actions integrated into the development of annual operational plans. 
These, in turn, will identify strategic initiatives that are aligned with the strategic 
plan’s priorities, and in harmony with our vision, mission and values statements.

The township’s senior management team will be responsible for developing the 
annual operational plans and presenting them to council for discussion and approval. 
These annual plans will also be the primary instrument for monitoring progress, 
including providing the framework for reporting to council and the public.

Photos generously provided by Criag Jackson.



 
 

   
  

   
 

 
 

  
  

 
   

  
 

  
  

   
   

 
 

  
      

 
  

   
  

    
     

   
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

 
  

    
    
     

Township of 

~ 1 BILLINGS 
The Corporation of the Township of Billings 

Council Meeting Minutes 
March 5, 2024 7:00 p.m. 
Kagawong Park Centre 

Council 
Bryan Barker, Mayor 
David Hillyard, Deputy Mayor 
Ian Anderson, Councillor 
Vince Grogan, Councillor 
Michael Hunt, Councillor 

Staff 
Emily Dance, CAO/Clerk 
Tiana Mills, Deputy Clerk 
Arthur Moran, By-Law Enforcement, Health and Safety, Emergency Management 
Martin Connell, Fire Chief 

1. Call to Order 
Mayor Bryan Barker called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

2. Approval of Agenda 
2.1. Confirm approval of the agenda. 

Motion 2024-98 
Moved by Hunt Seconded by Grogan 
THAT the Township of Billings Council hereby approves the March 5, 2024 Council 
Meeting Agenda as presented. 

Carried. 

3. Delegation 
None. 

4. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest 
None. 

5. Adoption of Minutes 
Motion to adopt the minutes of the following meetings of Council: 
5.1. Regular Council Meeting – February 20, 2024 
5.2. Committee of the Whole Meeting – February 27, 2024 



 
 

 
   

  
  

  
 

 
  

  
  

 
  

 
   

     
 
    

   
 

 
 

    
 
    

   
     

 
 

 
  

 
    

   
 

 
 

      
 

Township of 

~ 1 BILLINGS 
2024-99 
Moved by Anderson Seconded by Grogan 
THAT the Township of Billings Council hereby approves the February 20, 2024 Regular 
Council Meeting Minutes and the February 27, 2024 Committee of the Whole Meeting 
Minutes as presented. 

Carried. 

6. Committee Reports 
6.1. Members of Council are provided with an opportunity to report on Committee and 

Board meetings. 

No updates provided. 

7. Staff Reports 
7.1. BE-2024-03-01 – By-Law Enforcement Bi-monthly Report 

2024-100 
Moved by Hillyard Seconded by Hunt 
THAT the Township of Billings Council hereby receives for information, Report Number 
BE-2024-03-01. 

Carried. 

7.2. BE-2024-03-02 – Open Air Burning By-Law Update 
2024-101 
Moved by Anderson Seconded by Hillyard 
THAT the Township of Billings Council hereby approves Report Number BE-2024-03-02, 
regarding the review of the draft Open Air Burning By-Law AND FURTHER authorizes 
the amending By-Law coming forward. 

Carried. 

7.3. HS-2024-03-01-Health and Safety Bi-monthly Report 
2024-102 
Moved by Grogan Seconded by Anderson 
THAT the Township of Billings Council hereby receives for information, Report No. HS-
2024-03-01. 

Carried. 

7.4. BP-2024-03-02 – Proposed Land Exchange – Jerusalem Hill Road (2) 
2024-103 



 
 

    
   

  
     

  
   

   
      

   
 

 
 

    
 
   

   
  

 
  

   
   

    
 

 
   

 
 

  
    

 
   

    
 

     
 

     
 

     

Township of 

~ 1 BILLINGS 
Moved by Grogan Seconded by Hunt 
THAT the Township of Billings Council hereby approves Report BP-2024-03-02 AND 
approves the request of Pete and Aimee Flikweert to amend the land exchange for 
Jerusalem Hill Road Allowance and Jerusalem Hill Road Travelled portion to permit the 
small triangle portion on the northwest adjacent to the creek bed be conveyed to the 
Flikweerts AND FURTHER the Flikweerts be responsible for any additional costs 
associated with the legal fees and survey costs to include the small portion on the 
reference plan AND FURTHER authorize entering into a land purchase and sale 
agreement with Pete and Aimee Flikweert AND FURTHER authorize the appropriate By-
laws coming forward. 

Carried. 

7.5. CLK-2024-03-04-Island Wide Waste Management Resource Committee request 
2024-104 
Moved by Hunt Seconded by Anderson 
THAT the Township of Billings Council hereby approves report CLK-2024-03-04 AND 
1. Provides support to the Island Wide Waste Management Resource Committee in the 
amount of $5,000 (subject to conditions) 
2. Supports the Committees Sic Sox initiative to place a bin for the collection of textiles 
to be located at the Park Centre parking lot 
3. Supports the Committees’ Call to recycle initiative for the collection of used batteries 
and continue with a small box to be located at the Township Office. 

Carried. 

8. Correspondence Requiring Direction 
None. 

9. Information 
9.1. Ontario Trillium Foundation Funding Decision – Unsuccessful – Technological 

infrastructure upgrades (server, software and hardware) 
9.2. Emergency Management Ontario Community Emergency Preparedness Grant (CEPG) 

Unsuccessful – (generator for public works, chainsaws, electric current detector and 
handheld radios) 

9.3. Town of Plympton – Wyoming and Prince Edward County– Expanding the Life of Fire 
Apparatus 

9.4. Prince Edward County – Review of Ontario Works and Ontario Disability Support 
Program Financial Assistance Rates 

9.5. Township of Perry – Amend Blue Box Regulation for ‘Ineligible’ Sources 



 
 

     
      

 
 
    

   
     

   
 

 
    

    
 
    

   
  

 
 

   
   

 
 
    

  
   

    
 

 
    

 
   

    
       

 
 

 
   

 

Township of 

~ 1 BILLINGS 
9.6. Ministry of Transportation – Licence Plate Renewal proposed changes 
9.7. Ministry of the Environment Conservation and Parks – Ontario’s environmental 

assessment (EA) program 
2024-105 
Moved by Hunt Seconded by Grogan 
THAT the Township of Billings Council hereby receives for information all items listed in 
Section 9 and FURTHER support items 9.3 and 9.5 on behalf of Billings Township and 
FURTHER directs staff to circulate as appropriate. 

Carried. 

10. Accounts for Payment 
10.1. Accounts for Payment – February 28, 2024 

2024-106 
Moved by Hunt Seconded by Anderson 
THAT the Township of Billings Council hereby ratifies and confirms the accounts for 
payment dated February 28, 2024. 

Carried. 

11. By-Laws and Agreements 
11.1. 2024-14-Annual Monitoring Reporting and Well Improvement Agreement – 

Pinchin 
2024-107 
Moved by Grogan Seconded by Hunt 
THAT By-Law No. 2024-14 being the Annual Monitoring Reporting and Well 
Improvement Agreement – Pinchin By-Law be read a first, second and third 
time AND finally passed this 5th day of March 2024. 

Carried. 

11.2. 2024-15 – Old Mill Road Bridge Replacement Tender MCA By-Law 
2024-108 
Moved by Hunt Seconded by Anderson 
THAT By-Law No. 2024-15 being the Old Mill Road Bridge Replacement Tender 
MCA By-Law be read a first, second and third time AND finally passed this 5th 
day of March, 2024. 

Carried. 

11.3. 2024-16 – Township of Billings Committee Appointment Amendment (2) By-Law 
2024-109 



 
 

   
   

  
 

 
     

 
    

  
      

  
 

 
   

   
 
    

    
   

  
    

    
  

 
     

   
       

    
 

 
  

  
 
   

   
     

  

Township of 

~ 1 BILLINGS 
Moved by Hunt Seconded by Hillyard 
THAT By-Law No. 2024-16 being the Township of Billings Committee 
Appointment Amendment (2) By-Law be read a first, second and third time AND 
finally passed this 5th day of March, 2024. 

Carried. 

11.4. 2024-17 – Appoint Volunteer Firefighters By-Law Amendment (1) By-Law 
2024-110 
Moved by Anderson Seconded by Hunt 
THAT By-Law No. 2024-17 being the Appoint Volunteer Firefighters By-Law 
Amendment (1) By-Law be read a first, second and third time AND finally passed 
this 5th day of March, 2024. 

Carried. 

12. Notice of Motions 
12.1. Notice of Motion – Mayor Barker 

2024-111 
Moved by Barker Seconded by Grogan 
WHEREAS the Township of Billings is looking to find ways to facilitate attainable 
housing options for our residents; 
AND WHEREAS to realize our potential and protect the overall economic health and 
well-being of our community, we need to make space to welcome new community 
members AND provide alternative housing options for residents that wish to remain in 
the area; 
AND WHEREAS the Township of Billings owns vacant land located off Old Mill Road 
being legally described as Concession 16 Part Lot 27 RP 31R-377 parts 1,2 and 4; 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council direct staff to engage with a consultant 
to bring back a report with available options for the development of the lands for 
residential use. 

Carried. 

13. Closed Session 
13.1. Motion to move into Closed Session 

2024-112 
Moved by Hunt Seconded by Anderson 
THAT the Township of Billings Council hereby moves into Closed Session pursuant to [s. 
239(3.1)] Educating or training members of the council, local board or committee – 
Council Code of Conduct AND FURTHER returns to open session upon completion. 



 
 

 
 

   
 
    

    
   

 
 

  
      

 
   

  
   

 
 

  
   

 
   

   
 

  
 
 

     
       

 

Township of 

~ 1 BILLINGS 

______________________________ ______________________________ 

Carried. 

14. Report out of Closed Session 
2024-116 
Moved by Anderson Seconded by Hillyard 
THAT Mayor Barker reported a closed meeting was held related to training members of 
Council on the Code of Conduct. 

Carried. 

15. Confirmatory By-Law 
15.1. By-Law No. 2024-18 Being the March 5th 2024 Confirmatory By-Law 

2024-117 
Moved by Anderson Seconded by Hunt 
THAT By-Law No. 2024-18 being the March 5th, 2024 Confirmatory By-Law be read a 
first, second, third time and finally passed this 5th day of March, 2024. 

Carried. 

16. Adjournment 
16.1. Motion to Adjourn 

2024-118 
Moved by Hunt Seconded by Anderson 
THAT the Township of Billings Council hereby adjourn at 10:25 p.m. 

Carried. 

Mayor Bryan Barker CAO/Clerk Emily Dance 



































































 
 

  
  

   
   

   
    

 
  

      
   

  
      

   
 

   
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

 
 

  

 
 

  
  

 
  

   
   

 
  

    
  

   
  

Township of 

~ 1 BILLINGS 

COUNCIL REPORT 
Department: Chief Administrative Officer 
Date: March 19, 2024 
Report Number: CAO-2024-03-02 
File: Strategic Plan Township of Billings 
Attachment: Five Year Strategic Plan – Township of Billings 

Recommendation: 
THAT the Township of Billings Council hereby adopts the 2024-2028 and Beyond Township of 
Billings Strategic Plan as presented by Capital Park Consulting AND FURTHER authorizes the 
appropriate By-Law coming forward. 
Background: 
On September 19, 2023, Council approved the proposal of Capital Park Consulting Inc to 
provide a five-year strategic plan for the Township of Billings.  

The Strategic Planning process included multiple steps and various methods of engagement 
in formulating the plan. 

Task Comments 
Kick-off meeting The consultant met with staff following the approval of 

the proposal.  This was an opportunity to provide 
background documents and data. 

Review and Research The consultant reviewed the background materials and 
researched sector precedents and trends. 

Internal Stakeholder 
Engagement 

The consultant met one-on-one with staff member and 
Council to review Interim Report No. 1 

External Stakeholder 
Engagement 

Survey 
Focus group virtual workshops (Parks, Recreation & 
Wellness, Museum Committee, Library Board, Climate 
Action Committee & Lake Kagawong Resource Committee) 
Two in-person Townhall Meetings 

Planning Session Two-day workshop with Council and Staff 
Final Report Presentation Townhall and Council Meeting 

Discussion: 
Capital Park Consulting has taken all the information gathered through out the planning process 
and provided a document that identifies what is important to Council, Staff and the 
Community. 



 
 

 
   

  
  

  
  

    
    

   
  

 
    

  
  

  
  

        
 

  
 

Township of 

~ 1 BILLINGS 

This guiding document provides the four strategic priorities being 
• Service Excellence • Resilient, Natural Environment 
• Community Wellbeing • Infrastructure 

The Strategic Plan will provide a framework for decision-making.  It will be integrated into all 
township activities through the development of annual operational plans, that will identify 
strategic initiatives aligned with the strategic plan’s priorities and aligned with our mission, 
vision and values statement. 
Financial Impacts: 
$29,765 (carried over to 2024) Township of Billings budget for Consulting Services for a new 
Strategic Plan. 
Alignment to Strategic Plan: 
Part of the Strategic Plan process 
Alignment to the CEEP: 
The CEEP will be one of many important considerations influencing the 2024 to 2029 strategic 
planning process. 
Respectfully Submitted By: 
Emily Dance, CAO/Clerk 



 
 

 

COUNCIL REPORT 
Department:  Treasury 
Date: March 19, 2024 
Report Number: TR-2024-03-06 
File: Township of Billings 2024 Budget  
Attachment: 2024 Township of Billings Annual Budget, 2024 Township of Billings 
Budget Booklet, Public Comments Ted Kilpatrick and Sandy Cook 
Recommendation:  
THAT the Township of Billings Council hereby approves the 2024 Township of Billings Municipal 
Budget as presented with a 4% increase to the tax rate over 2023 AND FURTHER approves the 
appropriate By-Law coming forward on tonight’s agenda. 

Background:  
Section 290 and 291 of the Municipal Act, 2001 outlines the regulations for a municipality’s 
yearly budget or multi-budget process. Billings operates on a single year budgeting process, 
while there are some larger municipalities that have adopted a multi-year budget.  
 
Each year the Treasurer and staff review and revise their upcoming budget forecasts. They 
continue to sustain the level of services provided to residents with as little effect on the tax rate 
as possible.  

Discussion:  
On February 27, 2024, Council was first presented with the 2024 Draft budget at a Special 
Committee of the Whole Meeting.  The budget proposed was at a 5% increase over 2023.   
 
During deliberations, Council opted to reduce the tax rate to 4%.  To allow for the 1% decrease 
a reduction in the capital budget for 91 Main Street investigation was reduced from $30,000 to 
$18,000 and the Cedar Maze revitalization was reduced from $20,000 to $10,000.   
 
Notice of Intention to Adopt the Budget was published on February 29, 2024, on the Township 
website and on the Township’s social media page.  Members of the Public were given an 
opportunity to provide comments in writing to the Deputy Clerk until March 14, 2024, at noon.  
Comments attached.   

Financial Impacts 
As outlined in the 2024 Budget 

Alignment to Strategic Plan: 
The Strategic Plan provides a framework for decision-making. 

Alignment to the CEEP: 
The CEEP will be one of many important considerations influencing the 2024  (EV chargers) 

Respectfully Submitted By: 
Harmony Hancock Director of Finance/Treasurer and  
Emily Dance, CAO/Clerk 



 
 

 

 

Township of Billings 2024 Municipal Budget - Operating 

Revenue  

Municipal & School Board Tax       2,503,520  

Payments in LIEU              5,994  

Federal Funding            58,249  

Provincial Funding          588,904  

Water Usage Revenue          312,783  

Fees, Charges & Donation Revenue          227,450  

License & Permit Revenue            45,329  

Investment Income          198,200  

Penalties & Interest Revenue            48,200  

Other Revenue (Incl. Power Gen Stn.)            68,000  

Total Revenue     $ 4,056,629  

     

Expense   

Wages & Benefits          987,710  

Advertising            11,200  
Auditing & Accounting            50,000  

Bad Debt Expense                 500  
Bank Chgs. & Interest            11,850  

Overpayments              1,500  
Tower Communications              1,368  

Election Expense              1,000  
Fees & Licenses              7,635  

Health & Safety            16,150  
Insurance            67,552  

Legal Expense            20,000  
Loan Interest Expense            20,163  

Postage              5,030  
Professional Development            27,000  

Property Assessment            35,790  
Subscriptions & Memberships            16,975  

Tax Registration              1,200  
Travel              6,550  

Transfer to Asset Reserve          529,210  
    

  



 
 

 

 

 
Admin Expense          830,672  

Total Building & Equipment          203,550  

Contracts          342,172  

Pound                 250  
Regulation Compliance Exp.            12,000  

Project Expenses            88,300  

Total Other Services          442,722  

Ambulance          253,822  
Contribution Expense            15,000  

DSSAB Childcare            22,602  
DSSAB Ontario Works            31,935  

DSSAB Social Housing            84,963  
Home for Aged            42,609  

Levy School Boards - EP          300,000  
Levy Schools Boards - FP              3,500  

Levy Planning Board            20,000  
Policing          208,101  

Sudbury Dist. Health Unit            34,358  

Total Public Services       1,016,889  

  

Roads - Hard Top          201,000  
Roads - Loose Top            80,000  

Roads - Winter Control            45,000  
Roads - Street Lights              3,000  

Total Roads          329,000  

Library - Book Acquisitions              6,000  

Supplies          120,000  
Marina - Purchases - Products              8,000  

Marina - Purchases - Fuel            26,000  

Total Supplies & Equipment          160,000  

Hydro            61,950  
Propane            10,200  

Telephone & Internet            13,935  

Total Utilities            86,085  

Total Expense       4,056,629  
 

  



 
 

 

 
Township of Billings 2024 Municipal Budget – Capital 

Capital Funding Sources  2024 New Capital Projects  
EV funding 22,500  Tractor 80,000 

NORDS 384,000  Rink water line 15,000 

OCIF Capital Funding 128,104  91 Main St 18,000 

Water Reserve 109,415  EV Charging system 30,000 

NOHFC (Fire Hall) 18,000 
 

Water Treatment Plant (new 
equip.) 

56,415 

Infrastructure Loan 425,000  Old Mill Road Bridge 1,252,906 

General Reserve 451302  Bulk Water 15,000 

Deferred Revenue -  Cedar Maze 10,000 

Total Funding Sources 1,538,321  Total New Capital Projects 1,477,321 

Capital Expenditures   
 

  

  2023 Carry Forward Projects 

Buildings 48,000 

 

  
38,000 Old Mill Road water line 

Holdback 

Vehicles 80,000  Fire Hall 23,000 

Water Infrastructure 147,415      

Roads & Bridges 1,252,906  Total Carry Forward 61,000 

Recreation 10,000      

Total Expenses 1,538,321  Total Capital Budget 1,538,321 

 



Page | 1 
 

 

 

 
2024 Dra� Budget 

  



Page | 2 
 

About the Township of Billings...................................................................................................................... 3 

Township of Billings Council 2022-2026 ........................................................................................................ 3 

Message from the Mayor .............................................................................................................................. 4 

Message from Chief Administra�ve Officer / Clerk ...................................................................................... 4 

Tax Rate Effect ............................................................................................................................................... 5 

Assessment .................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Asset Management Plan ............................................................................................................................... 5 

2024 Goals and Objec�ves ............................................................................................................................ 6 

Reserves ........................................................................................................................................................ 6 

Current Long Term Debt Commitments ........................................................................................................ 6 

Provincial Funding ......................................................................................................................................... 7 

Grant Funding Ontario Municipal Partnership Fund (OMPF) ................................................................... 7 

Ontario Community Infrastructure Fund (OCIF) ....................................................................................... 7 

Northern Ontario Resource Development Support Fund (NORDS) .......................................................... 7 

Northern Ontario Heritage Fund Corpora�on (NOHFC) ........................................................................... 8 

Ontario Arts Council – Library ................................................................................................................... 8 

Federal Funding ............................................................................................................................................. 8 

HRDC Canada Summer Jobs Grant / Grants in Lieu .................................................................................. 8 

Canada Community-Building Fund (CCBF)former AMO Gas Tax .............................................................. 8 

Total Revenue- Opera�ng .............................................................................................................................. 8 

Expenses - Opera�ng .................................................................................................................................... 9 

Capital Budget ............................................................................................................................................... 9 

 
  



Page | 3 
 

 

About the Township of Billings 
The Heart of Manitoulin Island 

The Township of Billings is formed from Billings Township and the Eastern half of adjacent Allan 
Township, and occupies the north central por�on of Manitoulin Island. It contains part of Lake 
Kagawong, Lake Manitou, Oter Lake and Lake Mindemoya, and its northern boundary is Lake 
Huron. The extensive lake frontage explains the residence distribu�on, and the large por�on of 
seasonal residences. The Kagawong River drains Lake Kagawong, flows over Bridal Veil Falls, and 
reaches Lake Huron in the Hamlet of Kagawong. The Harbour at Kagawong is directly south of 
the Benjamin Islands cruising grounds on the North Channel, and between the harbour towns 
of Litle Current to the east, and Gore Bay to the west. The M’Chigeeng First Na�on reserve is 
within the boundaries of Billings, with Mindemoya directly to the south. 

The economy of Billings is driven more by tourism and service industries than by agriculture or 
logging as in the past.  

Thousands of tourists annually visit the township and take in the natural beauty of the area as 
well as visi�ng one of Manitoulin’s premier sites, Bridal Veil Falls. 

Billings Township Boundaries 

 

Township of Billings Council 2022-2026 
The Township of Billings is governed by an elected Council of five members, the Mayor, Deputy Mayor 
and three Councillors who serve a four-year term.   

The Mayor and Council are responsible for developing a long-range vision for the future of the 
community.  Council establishes policies that affect the overall opera�on of the municipal services and 
are responsive to the needs and wishes of residents. 



Page | 4 
 

 

Top L-R, Councillor Michael Hunt, Councillor Ian Anderson 
(appointed February 2024), Councillor Vince Grogan 
Botom L-R, Mayor Bryan Barker, Deputy Mayor Dave 
Hillyard 

Message from the Mayor 
Council will pass the 2024 budget with a breakout of 
opera�ng and capital.  The budget takes into considera�on 
the challenges of maintaining affordable services within 
the community, while also moving forward with Council 
approved priori�es. There are similar budgetary 
challenges in 2024 as there were last year, such as higher 

than normal infla�on, the aging infrastructure, and keeping the tax rate low. Some of those challenges 
are areas over which Council does not have control, such as reduced provincial funding, increased 
insurance costs and the increased costs of materials. The cost of providing services, ameni�es and 
facili�es is increasing, and it will be up to Council to determine the fiscally responsible path forward. 

We all understand that there is an expecta�on to maintain services that our residents rely on, while 
priori�zing key investments to replace our aging infrastructure. Council must also look forward to the 
opportuni�es for growth and future development. There is no doubt that there are many challenges 
facing Council in how best to deal with maintaining our current service levels, including the issues 
associated with deferred maintenance and capital investments.   

The public needs services from the Township and other levels of government but have limited resources 
for tax increases to cover increased servicing. Municipal staff have provided council with an excellent 
document that will guide our budget delibera�ons.  It will provide informa�on that will help Council 
establish a founda�on to move forward for next year and beyond.  On behalf of Council and staff, I wish 
you the best in the year 2024. 

Mayor Bryan Barker 

Message from Chief Administra�ve Officer / Clerk 
Establishing the municipal budget is one of the most important tasks of staff and Council.  2024 is a 
challenging budget.  With MPAC’s assessment s�ll based on the 2016 values and infla�on at an all-�me 
high there is a gap between revenues and increasing expenses.   

The budget concentrates on asset management, maintaining current service levels, finding areas for 
efficiencies, leveraging grant and funding opportuni�es while acknowledging staff capacity and resources 
available. 

We know our residents are feeling the effects of increased prices in all aspects of their lives. 
Unfortunately, the Township is experiencing the same infla�onary pressures from all �me high fuel, 
hydro and insurance prices along with the long-term borrowing for the firehall project and the Old Mill 
Road Bridge.  



Page | 5 
 

Throughout 2024 staff will con�nue to look for new funding opportuni�es and finding crea�ve ways to 
engage our residents through �mely and effec�ve communica�ons.  We are con�nually looking to build 
and improve upon our exis�ng strengths and engage residents, the business community, development 
community and our employees to expand and modernize our service delivery. 

Emily Dance, CAO/Clerk 

Tax Rate Effect 
With increased opera�ng costs and aging infrastructure both requiring addi�onal funds, it has been 
challenging to con�nue to offer the same high level of services, address emergency infrastructure issues 
and include new projects. 

During the previous term of Council, the Township of Billings con�nued to provide quality services to 
residents with as litle impact on the tax rate as possible, but the investment in infrastructure was 
limited.  During the 2022-2026 Council term, Council will be looking ahead and focusing on infrastructure 
needs; and strive to adopt budgets with a feasible tax rate increase to maintain services and 
infrastructure.  This will put the Township in a beter posi�on moving forward as we have significant 
investments needed towards infrastructure in adopted asset management plan. 

For 2024, a 1% increase on the municipal tax rate equals approximately $20,990 

Assessment 
Property assessments are based on the current value of proper�es as of a legislated valua�on date, 
which is currently January 1, 2016. The Ontario government has extended the current property 
assessment cycle and the valua�on date through to the end of the 2024 taxa�on year. The Ontario 
government has announced its inten�on to conduct a review of the property taxa�on system, and 
therefore property reassessment will be deferred un�l this work has been completed.    
 
Assessment growth results from property taxes are primarily due to the phased in assessment which is 
determined by MPAC as well as increases stemming from new development within Billings.  

Asset Management Plan 
Municipal infrastructure provides the founda�on for the economic, social, and environmental health and 
growth of a community through the delivery of cri�cal services. The goal of asset management is to 
deliver an adequate level of service in the most cost-effec�ve manner. This involves the development 
and implementa�on of asset management strategies and long-term financial planning. 

As part of the Infrastructure for Jobs and Prosperity Act, 2015, the Ontario government introduced 
Regula�on 588/17 - Asset Management Planning for Municipal Infrastructure (O. Reg 588/17). Following 
this regula�on, every municipality shall prepare an Asset Management Plan (AMP) in respect of its core 
municipal infrastructure assets by July 1, 2021, the municipali�es shall report on specific current levels of 
service being provided by core municipal infrastructure assets, determined in accordance with 
qualita�ve descrip�ons and technical metrics defined by the regula�on. The data reported should be 
from at most the two calendar years prior to the year in which all informa�on required is included in the 
asset management plan. 



Page | 6 
 

The Township of Billings has achieved compliance with O. Reg. 588/17 to the extent of the requirements 
that must be completed by July 1, 2022. There are addi�onal requirements concerning proposed levels 
of service and growth that must be met by July 1, 2024 and 2025.   

The 2021 Asset Management Plan iden�fied the following key sta�cs, specifically that the target 
reinvestment rate for the replacement and maintenance of our core infrastructure is 2.49% and Billings is 
only inves�ng 0.44%.  

 

2024 Goals and Objec�ves 
The overall objec�ve of the 2024 budget is to present Council with a budget that maintains the current 
service levels of the Township, recognizes the need to invest and plan for infrastructure projects.  It 
leverages grant funding opportuni�es, iden�fies moderniza�on ini�a�ves, and considers the capacity of 
staff and current resources.  

Reserves 
Reserves and Reserve Funds are an essen�al part of the Township of Billings finances. The purpose of the 
reserves is to save for future infrastructure needs to avoid spikes and dips in the overall tax levy. By 
se�ng aside funds each year, we are able to spread out the cost for the maintenance or replacement of 
our assets.   

Current Long Term Debt Commitments 
Debt financing is one mechanism used for funding large capital projects, along with a capital levy and 
reserve funds. Generally, capital projects provide benefits to residents over a number of years and 



Page | 7 
 

therefore it is appropriate to spread the cost over the benefit period to achieve “intergenera�onal 
equity.”  

In the Province of Ontario, municipali�es have the authoriza�on to incur long-term debt for municipal 
infrastructure as long as annual debt repayments do not exceed 25% of net revenues. The Province 
provides an annual statement for municipali�es known as the Annual Repayment Limit (ARL) statement, 
outlining the revenue and debt servicing calcula�ons. Billings 2023 ARL statement from the Province 
indicates an ARL of $748,194 based off the consolidate financial statements. 

The Township of Billings have used long-term debt financing sparingly in the past; however, with aging 
infrastructure and end of life assets the Township, the Township has had to rely on infrastructure 
debentures to assist in off-se�ng the significant costs to replace assets.  In 2023, Council approved 
applying to Infrastructure Ontario for financing of the Firehall project for temporary borrowing un�l 
project comple�on when the financing will move to a debenture for long-term borrowing.  Early 2024 
Council entered into a debenture in the amount of $890,198.93, at an interest rate of 4.53% p.a. 
(compounded semi-annually) for a term of 30 years for the firehall project.  

The 2024 budget includes a recommenda�on to par�ally fund the Old Mill Road Bridge in the amount of 
$425,000 to off-set the en�re amount being funded by the tax rate.  

Provincial Funding 
Grant Funding Ontario Municipal Partnership Fund (OMPF) 
The OMPF is the Province's main general assistance grant to municipali�es. The program primarily 
supports northern and rural municipali�es across the province. Its objec�ves are to: 

• recognize the challenges of northern and rural municipali�es, while targe�ng funding to those 
with more challenging fiscal circumstances; 

• support areas with limited property assessment; and 
• assist municipali�es that are adjus�ng to year-over-year funding changes. 

For 2024, the Township of Billings OMPF funding is $546,800 and increase of $2,100 over 2023 of 
$544,700  

Ontario Community Infrastructure Fund (OCIF) 
OCIF supports local infrastructure projects by providing stable and predicable funding for communi�es 
with popula�ons under 100,000 along with all rural and northern communi�es.  For 2024, the Township 
of Billings will receive OCIF funding in the amount of $128,104 an increase of $14,611 over 2023 of 
$113,493. 

Northern Ontario Resource Development Support Fund (NORDS) 
Ontario’s Northern Ontario Resource Development Support (NORDS) Fund provides annual funding over 
five years (2021-2022 -2025-2026) to municipali�es in Northern Ontario to support investments in local 
infrastructure. 

For 2024, the Township of Billings will receive $74,557.52.  This is a reduc�on of $2,275.75 to account 
for interest gained on the funding as the Township has saved the funds over the years for the Old Mill 
Road Bridge project. (Originally assigned to the Mud Creek Bridge) 



Page | 8 
 

Northern Ontario Heritage Fund Corpora�on (NOHFC) 
Northern Ontario Heritage Fund is designed to help build strong and resilient Northern communi�es 
through infrastructure investments, to upgrade / repair exis�ng assets to improve community quality of 
life, economic development infrastructure and strategic economic development ini�a�ves. 

The Township of Billings has been approved for funding in the amount of $719,647 for the firehall 
project in 2023; however, there are no current projects for 2024.  

Ontario Arts Council – Library 
The Ontario Arts Council (OAC) provides an opera�ng grant for the Billings Library.  For 2024 the Library 
will receive a grant in the amount of $10,850 

Federal Funding 
HRDC Canada Summer Jobs Grant / Grants in Lieu 
Canada Summer Jobs (CSJ) provides wage subsidies to employers from not-for-profit organiza�ons, the 
public sector, and private sector organiza�ons with 50 or fewer full-�me employees, to create quality 
summer work experiences for young people aged 15 to 30 years. 

The Township of Billings an�cipates approximately $ 10,900 for student posi�ons.  

Canada Community-Building Fund (CCBF)former AMO Gas Tax 
The Canada Community-Building Fund (CCBF) is a permanent source of funding provided up front, twice-
a-year, to provinces and territories, who in turn flow this funding to their municipali�es to support local 
infrastructure priori�es.  

The Township of Billings will receive in 2024 $47,349 

Total Revenue- Opera�ng 
Revenue                                2024 Proposed 
Municipal & School Board Tax 2,503,520 
Payments in LIEU 5,994 
Federal Funding 58,249 
Provincial Funding 588,904 
Water Usage Revenue 312,783 
Fees, Charges & Donation Revenue 227,450 
License & Permit Revenue 45,329 
Investment Income 198,200 
Penalties & Interest Revenue 48,200 
Other Revenue 68,000 
Total Revenue 4,056,629 



Page | 9 
 

 

Expenses - Opera�ng 
Expense  2024 Proposed 
Wages & Benefits 987,710 
Admin Expense 830,672 
Building & Equipment 203,550 
Other Services 442,722 
Public Services           1,016,889 
Roads              329,000 
Supplies & Equipment              160,000 
U�li�es   86,085 
Total           4,056,629 

 

Capital Budget 
Capital Funding Sources  2024 New Capital Projects  
EV funding 22,500  Tractor 80,000 
NORDS 384,000  Rink water line 15,000 
OCIF Capital Funding 128,104  91 Main St 18,000 
Water Reserve 109,415  EV Charging system 30,000 

NOHFC (Fire Hall) 18,000 
 

Water Treatment Plant (new 
equip.) 56,415 

Infrastructure Loan 425,000  Old Mill Road Bridge 1,252,906 
General Reserve 451302  Bulk Water 15,000 
Deferred Revenue -  Cedar Maze 10,000 
Total Funding Sources 1,538,321  Total New Capital Projects 1,477,321 

Capital Expenditures   
 

  
  2023 Carry Forward Projects 

Buildings 48,000 
 

  
38,000 Old Mill Road water line 

Holdback 
Vehicles 80,000  Fire Hall 23,000 
Water Infrastructure 147,415      
Roads & Bridges 1,252,906  Total Carry Forward 61,000 
Recreation 10,000      
Total Expenses 1,538,321  Total Capital Budget 1,538,321 

 



From: Sandy Cook
To: Emily Dance; Tiana Mills; David Hillyard; Bryan Barker; Ian Anderson; Vince Grogan; Michael Hunt
Subject: Budget proposal
Date: March 14, 2024 12:29:42 PM

Hello Everyone:)

We have a few comments on the proposed budget for your consideration:

1.  Given that the township already investigated the status of our building infrastructure in
2018 and found the site at 91 Main in need of major upgrades, please do not spend
more money repeating this.  Our understanding is that this facility only generates
$4,000 in revenue per year. Please consider either selling it to get a new tax base or
better yet, tear it down to provide parking for the firehall, which is woefully
inadequate...or future expansion?

2. Please do not pass this budget until the reserve concerns brought forward by Moray
Watson and others are resolved.  If indeed the reserves have between 200k and 500k
that should be in the water reserves, no budget can be contemplated until actual
reserves are known.  Hopefully your auditors can figure this out for you.

3. Please do not spend any money on the cedar maze.  It is not an attraction that tourists
come for. That $25,000 would be better spent on something else.

4. Until the reserves are known, please also hold off on the roadside tractor purchase. 
Although this may be a possible savings in the long run, it may not be a capital purchase
possible this year.

5. The 16 k proposed for security cameras.  Is this needed?  Have there been any thefts,
break-ins, vandalism that require this?  Will there be a break on insurance costs to
offset this ?  If not why now?

   
    
           Sincerely
           Ted Kilpatrick and Sandy Cook

mailto:cookilburrow@hotmail.com
mailto:edance@billingstwp.ca
mailto:tmills@billingstwp.ca
mailto:dhillyard@billingstwp.ca
mailto:bbarker@billingstwp.ca
mailto:ianderson@billingstwp.ca
mailto:vgrogan@billingstwp.ca
mailto:mhunt@billingstwp.ca


 

 
 
 
 
Township of Billings 
Mayor and Council 
 
12 March 2024 
 
Dear Mayor Barker and members of Council, 
 
4elements Living Arts is planning for Elemental Festival 2024, to be held September 20-21, 2024. 
New in 2024: 4elements Living Arts will collaborate with the Billings Library NorthWords 
Festival to put on a joint event. We are excited to be working as partners and we anticipate a great 
event! 
 
Elemental Festivals have been held in Kagawong over the past several years, and have always been 
a draw to the community, featuring artists, artisans, and musicians. Billings Township has always 
been a valued supporter of the Festival and we thank you for making it possible to feature 
community arts in this way. Our collaboration with NorthWords Festival will, no doubt, add to the 
reputation of Billings Township as a cultural hotspot on Manitoulin Island. 
   
As we did in previous years, 4elements plans to submit a grant proposal to the “Building 
Communities Through Arts and Heritage--Local Festivals” fund from the Government of 
Canada/Canadian Heritage. We have received funding from this source every year since 2019, all of 
which supported the local costs of the Festival.  
 
In order to complete our application for 2024, 4elements is requesting that the Township of 
Billings commit to providing in-kind support for Elemental Festival 2024 by allowing the use 
of the Kagawong Park Centre and Old Church on the Hill on September 20-21, 2024. 
Municipal support for the Festival is required in order for 4elements Living Arts to complete a 
proposal, with a simple form to complete to show your willingness to support. 
 
4elements Living Arts has been operating for more than 20 years, and has made significant 
contributions to Billings Township, including partnering on the Billings Connections Trail, which 
was recognized with the Lieutenant Governor’s Ontario Heritage Award in 2018. Our mission is to 
nurture and inspire community engagement in land-based arts on Manitoulin Island. We will 
continue to develop the concept and programming for Elemental/ NorthWords Festival 2024, and 
will keep you informed as we proceed.  
 
We would be happy to answer any questions you may have. With thanks for your consideration and 
support, 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Susan Snelling, on behalf of the Board of Directors, 4elements Living Arts 
 
cc. Jill Ferguson, Librarian, Billings Public Library 

susan
Susan Snelling





 

 

 

  

 

       

       
 

    
   

 
     

  
  

 
     

   
   

 
    

 
 

   
 

  
  
  

  
  

  
 

 
     

 
     

 

       

     

 

 

                                     

 

BY-LAW NO 2024-19 

BEING A BY-LAW TO SET THE TAX RATIO FOR THE 

2024 TAXATION YEAR FOR THE TOWNSHIP OF BILLINGS 

WHEREAS the Municipal Act S.O. 2001, c 25, Section 5(1), as amended, provides that 
the powers of a municipal corporation are to be exercised by its Council; 

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Act S.O. 2001, c 25, Section 308 provides that every 
municipality shall establish a set of tax ratios and shall pass a by-law in each year to 
establish the tax rations for that year for the municipality; 

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Act S.O. 2001, c 25, Section 308 provides that the tax 
rations are the rations that the tax rate for each property class must be to the tax rate for 
the residential property class where the residential property class tax rationis 1 

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 
BILLINGS ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

1.0 THAT for the 2024 taxation year the following tax rations shall apply: 

Tax Class Tax Ratio 
Residential 1.000 
Commercial 1.000 
Industrial 1.000 
Farm 0.250 
Managed Forest 0.250 

2.0 THIS By-Law shall come into full force and effect upon final passage. 

3.0 THIS By-Law may be cited as “2024 – Tax Ratio By-law” 

READ a FIRST and SECOND TIME this 19th day of March, 2023 

READ a THIRD TIME and FINALLY PASSED 19th day of March, 2023 

Bryan Barker, Mayor Emily Dance, CAO/Clerk 



 

 

 

 

 

 

BY-LAW NO 2024-20 

 

BEING A BY-LAW TO ADOPT THE 2024 MUNICIPAL  

ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE TOWNSHIP OF BILLINGS 

 
WHEREAS Section 8(1) and 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, provide that the powers of a municipality under this or any other Act shall be 
interpreted broadly so as to confer broad authority on the municipality to enable the 
municipality to govern its affairs as it considers appropriate and to enhance the 
municipality’s ability to respond to municipal issues and has the capacity, rights, powers 
and privileges of a natural person for the purposes of exercising its authority under this 
or any other Act;  
 
AND WHEREAS Section 290 of the Municipal Act, 2002, s.o. 2001, C.25 as amended 
requires that a local municipality shall, in the year or the immediately preceding year, 
prepare and adopt a budget including estimates of all sums required during the year for 
the purposes of the municipality;  
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of The Corporation of the Township of Billings deems it 
expedient to adopt the annual estimates for operating and capital purposes for the 
Township; 
 
NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 
BILLINGS ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1.0  That the Corporation of the Township of Billings Council hereby adopts the 
2024 Municipal Budgets as contained in the attached Schedule “A” and 
Schedule ‘B’ and forms part of this By-law. 
 

2.0 THAT this By-Law shall come into effect upon final passage. 
 
3.0 THIS By-Law may be cited as “2024 Budget By-law” 

 

READ a FIRST and SECOND TIME this 19th day of March, 2023 

READ a THIRD TIME and FINALLY PASSED 19th day of March, 2023 

 

 

Bryan Barker, Mayor                                    Emily Dance, CAO/Clerk 

  



 

 

SCHEDULE ‘A’ to By-Law No. 2024-20 

Township of Billings 2024 Municipal Budget 

Operating Budget 2024         

Revenue  

Municipal & School Board Tax       2,503,520  

Payments in LIEU              5,994  

Federal Funding            58,249  

Provincial Funding          588,904  

Water Usage Revenue          312,783  

Fees, Charges & Donation Revenue          227,450  

License & Permit Revenue            45,329  

Investment Income          198,200  

Penalties & Interest Revenue            48,200  

Other Revenue (Incl. Power Gen Stn.)            68,000  

Total Revenue     $ 4,056,629  

     

Expense   

Wages & Benefits          987,710  

Advertising            11,200  

Auditing & Accounting            50,000  

Bad Debt Expense                 500  

Bank Chgs. & Interest            11,850  

Overpayments              1,500  

Tower Communications              1,368  

Election Expense              1,000  

Fees & Licenses              7,635  

Health & Safety            16,150  

Insurance            67,552  

Legal Expense            20,000  

Loan Interest Expense            20,163  

Postage              5,030  

Professional Development            27,000  

Property Assessment            35,790  

Subscriptions & Memberships            16,975  

Tax Registration              1,200  

Travel              6,550  

Transfer to Asset Reserve          529,210  
    
 
Admin Expense          830,672  

Total Building & Equipment          203,550  

Contracts          342,172  

Pound                 250  

Regulation Compliance Exp.            12,000  

Project Expenses            88,300  

Total Other Services          442,722  

Ambulance          253,822  

Contribution Expense            15,000  

DSSAB Childcare            22,602  

DSSAB Ontario Works            31,935  

DSSAB Social Housing            84,963  

Home for Aged            42,609  

Levy School Boards - EP          300,000  

Levy Schools Boards - FP              3,500  

Levy Planning Board            20,000  

Policing          208,101  

Sudbury Dist. Health Unit            34,358  

Total Public Services       1,016,889  



 

 

  

Roads - Hard Top          201,000  

Roads - Loose Top            80,000  

Roads - Winter Control            45,000  

Roads - Street Lights              3,000  

Total Roads          329,000  

Library - Book Acquisitions              6,000  

Supplies          120,000  

Marina - Purchases - Products              8,000  

Marina - Purchases - Fuel            26,000  

Total Supplies & Equipment          160,000  

Hydro            61,950  

Propane            10,200  

Telephone & Internet            13,935  

Total Utilities            86,085  

Total Expense       4,056,629  
 
   



 

 

SCHEDULE ‘B’ to By-Law No. 2024-20 

 
Township of Billings 2024 Municipal Budget – Capital 

 
Capital Funding Sources    2024 New Capital Projects   
EV funding  22,500    Tractor  80,000 

NORDS  384,000    Rink water line  15,000 

OCIF Capital Funding  128,104    91 Main St  18,000 

Water Reserve  109,415    EV Charging system  30,000 

NOHFC (Fire Hall)  18,000 
 

Water Treatment Plant (new 
equip.) 

56,415 

Infrastructure Loan  425,000    Old Mill Road Bridge  1,252,906 

General Reserve  451302    Bulk Water  15,000 

Deferred Revenue  ‐    Cedar Maze  10,000 

Total Funding Sources  1,538,321    Total New Capital Projects  1,477,321 

Capital Expenditures    
 

  

  2023 Carry Forward Projects 

Buildings  48,000 

 

  
38,000 Old Mill Road water line 

Holdback 

Vehicles  80,000    Fire Hall  23,000 

Water Infrastructure  147,415         

Roads & Bridges  1,252,906    Total Carry Forward  61,000 

Recreation  10,000         

Total Expenses  1,538,321    Total Capital Budget  1,538,321 

 
 

 



 

 

 

  

 

       
        

 
    

   
 

  
    

 
      

   
 

  
  

   
  

 
  
  

 
    

 
 

    
 

    
   
   

   
   

   
    

   
   

 
 

   
 

   
   

 
 

   
   

    
 

   
 

 

BY-LAW NO 2024-21 

BEING A BY-LAW TO AUTHORIZE THE LEVYING OF TAX RATES AND 
COLLECTION OF TAXES FOR THE YEAR 2024 

WHEREAS the Municipal Act S.O. 2001, c 25, Section 5(1), as amended, provides that 
the powers of a municipal corporation are to be exercised by its Council; 

AND WHEREAS Section 312 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, provides that the Council of a local Municipality shall, after the adoption of 
estimates for each year, pass a by-law to levy a separate tax rate on the assessment in 
each property class, including any adjustments made under the Assessment Act for the 
purposes of raising the general local municipal levy; 

AND WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Billings has, in 
accordance with the Municipal Act, 2001, considered the estimates of the municipality 
and it is necessary that the following sums be raised by means of taxation for the year 
2023; 

Municipal Purposes: $2,195,983.53 
Education Purposes: $309,893.11 

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 
BILLINGS ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

1.0 THAT for the 2024 taxation year the following tax ratio shall apply: 

Tax Class Municipal Education 
Residential 0.01191603 0.001530 
Commercial 0.01191603 0.00644236 
Industrial 0.01191603 0.008800 
Farm 0.00297856 0.0003825 
Managed Forest 0.00297856 0.0003825 
PIL Residential 0.01191603 0.001530 
PIL Commercial 0.01191603 0.00644236 
PIL Landfill 0.00297856 0.0003825 

2.0 THAT every owner shall be taxed according to the tax rates of this by-law 
and such tax shall become due and payable in two instalments as follows: 
50% of the previous year’s levy shall become due and payable on March 
31, or the last working day in March; and that the balance of the final levy 
shall become due and payable on September 30, or the last working day 
in September. 

3.0 THAT non-payment of this amount, as noted on the dates stated in 
accordance with this by-law constitutes default. On all taxes of the levy, 
which are in default after March 31, 2024 and after September 30, 2024, a 
penalty of 1.25 percent shall be added on the first day of each and every 
month, for each month or fraction thereof which arrears continues, until 
December 31, 2024. 

https://309,893.11
https://2,195,983.53


      
  

 
 

   
  

  
  

 
  

   
  

 
 

   
 

      
 

       

     

 

 

                                     

 

4.0 THAT all taxes unpaid as of December 31, 2024 interest shall be added at 
the rate of 1.25 percent per month or fraction thereof in which arrears 
continue. 

5.0 THAT the Treasurer is hereby authorized to mail or cause to be mailed the 
notice of taxes due to the address of the residence or place of residence 
of the person to whom such notice is required to be given, on or before 
September 9, 2024. 

6.0 THAT the Treasurer shall proceed to collect the amount to be raised by 
the by-law together with all other sums on the tax roll in the manner as set 
forth in the Assessment Act and the Municipal Act and all other by-laws in 
force. 

7.0 THAT this By-Law shall come into effect upon final passage. 

8.0 THIS By-Law may be cited as “2024 – Tax Rate By-law” 

READ a FIRST and SECOND TIME this 19th day of March, 2024 

READ a THIRD TIME and FINALLY PASSED this 19th day of March, 2024 

Bryan Barker, Mayor Emily Dance, CAO/Clerk 



 

 

 

  

 

  

     
 

    
  

     
 

  

    
   

  

   
  

    
    

    
   

   
  

 
     

      
  

  
 

   
   

   
 

     
 

         
 

       

     

 

 

                                    

BY-LAW NO 2024-22 

BEING A BY-LAW TO CONFIRM THE PROCEEDINGS OF THE 

COUNCIL OF THE TOWNSHIP OF BILLINGS 

WHEREAS the Municipal Act S.O. 2001, c 25, Section 5(1), as amended, provides that 
the powers of a municipal corporation are to be exercised by its Council; 

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Act S.O. 2001, c 25, Section 5(3), as amended, 
provides that a municipal power, including a municipality’s capacity rights, powers and 
privileges under Section 9; shall be exercised by By-Law; 

AND WHEREAS The Council for The Corporation of the Township of Billings deems it 
expedient that the proceedings of meetings of the Council be confirmed and adopted by 
By-Law; 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of The Corporation of the Township of Billings enacts 
as follows: 

1. THAT the actions of the Council of The Corporation of The Township of Billings 
at its Council Meeting held on March 19, 2024 in respect to each report, motion, 
resolution, or other actions recorded and taken by Council at its meetings, except 
where the prior approval of the Ontario Lands Tribunal is required is hereby 
adopted, ratified, and confirmed as if all such proceedings were expressly 
embodied in this By-Law. 

2. THAT the Mayor and CAO/Clerk, or such other official as deem appropriate are 
hereby authorized and directed to do all things necessary to give effect to the 
said action, of Council of the Township of Billings referred to in the proceeding 
section. 

3. THAT the Mayor and CAO/Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute 
all documents necessary on behalf of the Council and to affix the corporate seal 
of The Corporation of The Township of Billings to all such documents. 

4. THIS By-Law shall come into full force and effect upon final passage. 

5. THIS By-Law may be cited as the “March 19, 2024 Confirmatory By-Law” 

READ a FIRST and SECOND TIME this 19th day of March 2024 

READ a THIRD TIME and FINALLY PASSED this 19th day of March, 2024 

Bryan Barker, Mayor  Emily Dance, CAO/Clerk 


	03 19 24 March 19 2024 Regular Council Agenda.pdf
	CPC003_Strat-Plan_Billings_0324_Proof3
	Message from the Mayor and Council
	Our Vision
	Our Mission
	Strategic Priorities

	03 05 24 March 5 2024 Regular Council Minutes
	Minutes-TwoPublicMeetings-Feb27-2024
	Minutes-Feb27-2024
	Building Systems Committee Meeting
	CAO-2024-03-02 Strategic_Plan_Final
	TR-2024-03-06 - 2024 Township of Billings Budget tm
	TR-2024-03-06 2024 Budget Book -March 19 2024
	About the Township of Billings
	Township of Billings Council 2022-2026
	Message from the Mayor
	Message from Chief Administrative Officer / Clerk
	Tax Rate Effect
	Assessment
	Asset Management Plan
	2024 Goals and Objectives
	Reserves
	Current Long Term Debt Commitments
	Provincial Funding
	Grant Funding Ontario Municipal Partnership Fund (OMPF)
	Ontario Community Infrastructure Fund (OCIF)
	Northern Ontario Resource Development Support Fund (NORDS)
	Northern Ontario Heritage Fund Corporation (NOHFC)
	Ontario Arts Council – Library

	Federal Funding
	HRDC Canada Summer Jobs Grant / Grants in Lieu
	Canada Community-Building Fund (CCBF)former AMO Gas Tax

	Total Revenue- Operating
	Expenses - Operating
	Capital Budget

	TR-2024-03-06 2024  Budget proposal -Cook Killpatrick
	BIllings Council Elemental Festival 2024 + attach
	BIllings Council Elemental Festival 2024.pdf
	confirmation-eng Elemental NorthWords 2024 TBD completed.pdf

	2024-19_Adopt_Tax_Ratio_2024
	2024-20-Adopt 2024 Budget
	2024-21-Adopt tax rate 2024
	2024-22 Confirmatory March 19 2024



